
CITY OF MACKINAC ISLAND 

AGENDA 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

Wednesday, February 05, 2025 at 2:00 PM 

City Hall – Council Chambers, 7358 Market St., Mackinac Island, Michigan 

I. Call to Order 

II. Roll Call 

III. Pledge of Allegiance 

IV. Additions to / Adoption of Agenda 

V. Approval of Minutes 

a. Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting, held on January 22, 2025 

b. Minutes of the Special City Council Meeting, held on January 29, 2025 

VI. Approval of the Treasurer's Report 

a. February 5, 2025 Treasurer's Report 

VII. Approval of Payments for: 

a. February 6, 2025 Payroll 

b. February 5, 2025 Payables 

VIII. Committee Reports 

a. January 15, 2025 Public Safety Committee Report  

b. January 29, 2025 Public Safety Committee Report  

IX. Correspondence 

X. Old Business 

a. Mackinac Island Police Department – hiring of a local K-9 Unit  

b. Discussion and / or action regarding the 2025 parking fees & schedules submitted by 
Arnold Transit 

c. Discussion and / or action regarding the 2025 parking fees & schedules submitted by 
Shepler’s Ferry  

XI. New Business 

1



2/5/2025 Council Agenda Page | 2 

 
a. Request for approval for the Police Department to hire a part-time seasonal officer 

beginning in February 2025 

b. Mackinac Marine Rescue 2024 Annual Report  

c. Request for approval to adopt the City of Mackinac Island Resolution for Poverty 
Exemption  

d. Request for approval to adopt the City of Mackinac Island Assessor Contact 
Information & Policy Regarding Access to Assessment Records 

e. Request for approval of the 2025 parking locations for the Wheelman event 

f. Request for approval of a Competitive Event Application, submitted by Aaron 
Palaian, for the OTILLO SwimRun  

g. Request for approval of (3) Competitive Event Applications, submitted by Run 
Mackinac Events 

h. Request for approval of a trailer permit, submitted by Dickinson Homes, for work at 
Hoban Hill  

i. Request for approval of (1) vehicle & (3) trailer permits, submitted by J&R Building 
Movers & U.P. North Construction, to deliver modular sections to the Wenzel build – 
Forest Bluff Lot #3  

j. Request for approval of a vehicle permit, submitted by U.P. North Construction, for a 
telehandler for roof work at the Wenzel build – Forest Bluff Lot #3 

k. Request for approval of (2) vehicles & (1) trailer, submitted by Plutchak Crane Rental, 
to set modular sections at the Wenzel build – Forest Bluff Lot #3 

l. Request for approval of an Off-Island business license application, submitted by 
Steve Brinks 

m. Request for approval of (2) vehicle and (1) trailer permit, submitted by Steve Brinks, 
for factory house setting at the Wenzel build (Forest Bluff Lot #3) & at the new school 
housing  

XII. Miscellaneous / General Council Discussion / Additional Agenda Items 

XIII. Adjournment 

2



CITY OF MACKINAC ISLAND 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

Wednesday, January 22, 2025 at 2:00 PM 

City Hall – Council Chambers, 7358 Market St., Mackinac Island, Michigan 

 

I. Call to Order 

Mayor Doud called the meeting to order at 2:00 pm 

 

II. Roll Call 

PRESENT     ABSENT 

- Richard Chambers     - Alan Sehoyan  

- Tom Corrigan 

- Steven Moskwa 

- Anneke Myers 

- Jason St. Onge  

- Rick Linn, Treasurer  

- Erin Evashevski, City Attorney (via Zoom from St. Ignace, MI)  

 

IV. Additions to / Adoption of Agenda 

Motion made by Moskwa, seconded by Corrigan, to adopt the agenda as presented.  

Voting Yea: Chambers, Corrigan, Moskwa, Myers, St. Onge 

 

V. Approval of Minutes 

− Minutes of the Special City Council Meeting, held on January 8, 2025 were presented 

o Mayor Doud stated that the minutes stood approved as presented  

− Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting, held on January 8, 2025 

o Mayor Doud stated that the minutes stood approved as presented  

− Minutes of the Zoning Board of Appeals Meeting held on January 13, 2025 - 1485 Astor Group  

o Mayor Doud stated that the minutes stood approved as presented  

 

VI. Approval of the Treasurer's Report 

− The January 22, 2025 Treasurer's Report was presented  

o Mayor Doud stated that the report was to be placed on file as presented  

 

VII. Approval of Payments for: 

Motion made by St. Onge, seconded by Moskwa, to pay the January 22, 2205 bills and payroll 

Voting Yea: Chambers, Corrigan, Moskwa, Myers, St. Onge 

 

IX. Correspondence 

− An email was received from Terry Gerdes regarding the senior transport program  

Motion made by Myers, seconded by St. Onge, to place the email on file 

 

X. Old Business 

− Mayor Doud was recently contacted by Coast Guard Sector Sault regarding shutting down the 

straits for the season, which requires a 72-hour notice  

o Councilman St. Onge commented that he would like to wait to see what the upcoming 30-

degree weather does for the ice conditions before we call for things to be closed  

▪ Mayor agreed to wait and see where things are after the weekend  

 

− Mackinac Island Police Department – hiring of a local K-9 Unit  

o Committee’s recommendation to hire Sue Stejskal and her K9 dogs beginning in April 

2025 with the new budget. Proposed that Ms. Stejskal will receive an annual salary of 

$1,220.00 and an activation fee of $20.00 per hour for a one-year period. Position will be 

reviewed in February 2026 to assess numbers, see if the services were used and if so how 

many times. 

▪ Councilman Moskwa noted that there were offers to donate the funds to cover the 

annual salary  

Motion made by St. Onge, seconded by Moskwa, to send the hiring of local K-9 unit to the 

Public Safety Committee for further discussion.  

Voting Yea: Chambers, Corrigan, Moskwa, Myers, St. Onge 

  

− Councilman St. Onge inquired if anything had been found regarding the appointment of an 

additional member to the Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA)  

o Attorney Evashevski noted that a separate ZBA could be appointed, it does not need to be 

made up of the Council 

o Councilwoman Myers asked that Attorney Evashevski lay out all of the options for 

Council to review 

3

Section V, Itema.



Pg. 2 of the January 22, 2025 Regular City Council Meeting Minutes 

 

XI. New Business 

− Off-Island Business License Application submitted by AB Painting LLC 

Motion made by Myers, seconded by St. Onge, to approve the application for business license.  

Voting Yea: Chambers, Corrigan, Moskwa, Myers, St. Onge 

  

− NEW Business License Application submitted by Mack Tracks LLC 

Motion made by St. Onge, seconded by Moskwa, to approve the application for business license. 

Voting Yea: Chambers, Corrigan, Moskwa, Myers, St. Onge 

 

− NEW Business License Application submitted by 1485 Astor LLC dba Mustang Condominiums  

Motion made by Myers, seconded by Corrigan, to approve the application for business license.  

Voting Yea: Chambers, Corrigan, Moskwa, Myers, St. Onge 

 

− 2025 Planned Generator Maintenance Agreement with Cummins Sales & Services 

Motion made by Myers, seconded by St. Onge, to approve the generator maintenance agreement 

and to authorize Building Inspector Dennis Dombroski to sign it.  

Voting Yea: Chambers, Corrigan, Moskwa, Myers, St. Onge 

 

− Modular lengths for the Jaquiss residence located at 6948 Main St.  

o City ordinance states a maximum 44' length & 14' feet wide 

o Ms. Jaquiss is requesting to bring modular sections that measure 12 ft wide by 43' & 3.5" 

to 56' & 1" 

o Sections will be staged at Mission Point (permission confirmed by Liz Ware at the 

meeting) 

o Councilman St. Onge commented that he would consider granting the ordinance 

deviation due to the specific location – delivery route would not impede traffic and 

shouldn’t cause any road blockage 

o By voting yes, Councilman St. Onge stated that he does not agree with everything 

stated in the letters presented by Mr. Murray on Ms. Jaquiss’ behalf 

o Consideration for this type of ordinance deviation has to be on a case by case 

basis depending on the delivery location. 

o If the ordinance deviation for sizing is granted, there is no possibility of them 

being delivered to the Coal Dock. Consideration of this ordinance deviation only 

applies to the specific route from the British Landing dock with the delivery to 

the specified location only.  

o Councilwoman Myers commented that she does not believe that, as stated in the 

submitted letters, that this case is a cause for an ordinance amendment. Requests such as 

these need to be considered on a case by case basis.  

Motion made by St. Onge, seconded by Corrigan, to grant an ordinance deviation for longer 

modular sections, set forth in the City’s Motor Vehicle Ordinance, section 66.95-3, for Cheryl 

Jaquiss’ residence located at 6948 Main Street, based on the criteria that the route of travel from 

the State Dock at British Landing should not be inhibited by the modular lengths and that the 

time-frame requested to deliver and set the sections are within the permitted times for the vehicle 

zone the residence is located in.  

Voting Yea: Chambers, Corrigan, Moskwa, Myers, St. Onge 

 

− Lot split application submitted by Frank Bloswick Sr. for parcel ID# 051-630-086-00, Lot 86, 5th 

St.  

o Application and documents have been reviewed and ok’d by City Assessor Joe Stakoe  

o Attorney Evashevski noted that it meets all the criteria under the Zoning Ordinance and 

was recommended for approval by the Planning Commission   

o It is the responsibility of the applicant to have the documents recorded with the Mackinac 

County Register of Deeds and County Equalization Department to be properly processed 

and recorded  

Motion made by St. Onge, seconded by Moskwa, to approve the lot split application for Frank 

Bloswick Sr – Parcel ID# 051-630-086-00, Lot 86, 5th St.  

Voting Yea:  Chambers, Corrigan, Moskwa, Myers, St. Onge 

 

− Preapproved vehicle and trailer permit, submitted by Norther Power Electric, to deliver their job 

trailer to the Inn at Stonecliffe. Vehicle & trailer arrived on January 14th – vehicle was in use for 

one (1) day and the trailer will remain for a few weeks.  

Motion made by Myers, seconded by Corrigan, to approve the preapproved vehicle & trailer  

permits.  

Voting Yea:  Chambers, Corrigan, Moskwa, Myers, St. Onge 

 

 

 

 

4

Section V, Itema.



Pg. 3 of the January 22, 2025 Regular City Council Meeting Minutes 

 

− Preapproved vehicle and trailer permit, submitted by EUP Drywall, for the delivery of their job 

trailer for various winter projects. Vehicle and trailer arrived on January 15, 2025 – vehicle was in 

use for one (1) day and the trailer will remain in the alley by Cindy’s Riding Stable until April 

2025. 

Motion made by Moskwa, seconded by Myers, to approve the preapproved vehicle & trailer  

permits.  

Voting Yea:  Chambers, Corrigan, Moskwa, Myers, St. Onge 

 

− Pre-approved vehicle permit, submitted by O’Boyle & Co., to haul a water trailer to the Wenzel 

residence in Forest Bluff. Vehicle & trailer arrived on January 20th and were in use for one (1) to 

three (3) days.  

Motion made by Myers, seconded by Corrigan, to approve the preapproved vehicle & trailer  

permits.  

Voting Yea:  Chambers, Corrigan, Moskwa, Myers, St. Onge 

 

− (4) vehicle and (1) trailer permit, submitted by O’Boyle & Co., for work at the Inn at Stonecliffe 

kitchen project. Vehicles and trailer will arrive on January 25th and will be in use for one (1) to 

three (3) days.  

Motion made by Myers, seconded by Moskwa, to approve the vehicle and trailer permits.  

Voting Yea:  Chambers, Corrigan, Moskwa, Myers, St. Onge 

 

− (3) vehicle permits, submitted by Belonga Excavating, to excavate a foundation for Bob Benser’s 

development located at 1274 Mission St. Vehicles will arrive the week of January 27th and will be 

in use for one (1) to three (3) days.  

Motion made by Myers, seconded by Moskwa, to approve the vehicle permits.  

Voting Yea:  Chambers, Corrigan, Moskwa, Myers, St. Onge 

 

− (3) vehicle permits, submitted by Mackinac Axe, for tree trimming and tree removal at the 

Windermere Hotel, Brad Chambers residence (Cadotte Ave.), and the Benjamin residence. Work 

dates are to be determined.  

Motion made by Myers, seconded by St. Onge, to approve the vehicle permits.  

Voting Yea:  Chambers, Corrigan, Moskwa, Myers, St. Onge 

 

XII. Miscellaneous / General Council Discussion / Additional Agenda Items 

Motion made by St. Onge, seconded by Moskwa, to have the Clerk issue letters of congratulations to 

Maddie Gamble and Vinny Davis to congratulate them obtaining their 1,000 points. 

Voting Yea:  Chambers, Corrigan, Moskwa, Myers, St. Onge 

 

XIII. Adjournment 

There being no further business, motion made by Myers, seconded by Corrigan, to adjourn the meeting 

at 3:00 pm. 

Voting Yea: Chambers, Corrigan, Moskwa, Myers, St. Onge  

 

 

 

 

 

 

_______________________________________  ______________________________________ 

Margaret M. Doud, Mayor     Danielle Leach, City Clerk  

5

Section V, Itema.



CITY OF MACKINAC ISLAND 

SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

FERRY & AIR TRANSPORTATION  

Wednesday, January 29, 2025 at 12:30 PM 

City Hall – Council Chambers, 7358 Market St., Mackinac Island, Michigan 

 

I. Call to Order 

Mayor Doud called the meeting to order at 12:30 pm 

 

II. Roll Call 

PRESENT

Richard Chambers 

Tom Corrigan 

Steven Moskwa 

Anneke Myers 

Alan Sehoyan 

Jason St. Onge 

Erin Evashevski, City Attorney - via Zoom from St. Ignace, MI  

 

VI. New Business 

− Discussion of Air & Ferry Transportation  

o Fresh Air  

▪ Depend on winter service to be able to provide year-round service to Mackinac 

Island 

▪ Would like to discuss operations with the Mackinac Island Transportation 

Authority (MITA) 

▪ Councilman St. Onge noted that the formation of MITA was to ensure that the 

Island had a year-round (or ice to ice) boat service  

• The Council needs to make mainland access obtainable - cannot force 

residents to travel air only, especially as it is the higher cost for travel  

▪ Fresh Air proposed the ferry passenger service temporarily shutting down each 

winter from February 1st through March 1st   

▪ Councilman St. Onge noted that Mackinac Island Ferry Company holds the Winter 

Service Contract with the City of Mackinac Island, which makes them the sole 

ferry passenger service from November through April of each year. Fresh Air is not 

the sole operator for aviation services, and if they were, rates would need to be 

regulated 

▪ Councilwoman Myers noted that the City Charter gives authority to the City 

Council over the Island’s docks and ferry service. Plane service is operated through 

the Mackinac County and Mackinac State Park airports. The council has discussed 

subsidizing the airlines in the past, but the City does not have the authority to do 

so. 

• A conversation with MITA may provide different options than what the 

City has access to  

• Also need to keep in mind that Mackinac Island Ferry Co. has a Franchise 

Agreement and a five (5) year Winter Service Contract with the City to run 

a ferry passenger service in the winter months  

▪ Councilman Corrigan inquired if there was any chance for a discounted rate for 

island residents like the ferry service offers 

• Fresh Air responded that this is something they could look in to, but no 

guarantees  

 

o Arnold Transit  

▪ It is critical that there is a backup transportation system for the Island, and Fresh 

Air can provide that as long as it is sustainable for them 

▪ Would agree with shutting the ferry passenger service for the month of February 

▪ Councilwoman Myers inquired what would happen in that situation for the boat 

line? What if there was a storm during that time that boat travel was possible, but 

air travel was not? 

• Ms. Dobrowolski noted that Arnold Transit would work together with 

Fresh Air to make a form of transportation available  

▪ Andy McGreevy of MITA commented that they may be able to provide some sort 

of funding or financial support to the airline like they do with the boat line. Can 

continue to look in to what funds may be available.  

• Mr. McGreevy further commented that it would be ideal to keep both ferry 

and air services available throughout the winter months  

 

 

 

6

Section V, Itemb.



 
Pg. 2 of the January 29, 2025 Special City Council Meeting Minutes 

 

▪ Mayor Doud and other council members made it clear that the option of the ferry 

passenger service shutting down for the month of February is not a possibility for 

2025 

▪ Suggested that Fresh Air and Arnold Transit speak with MITA and then make a 

proposal with future plans to present to the City Council for consideration  

 

− Closing of the Straits of Mackinac 

o Ms. Dobrowolski stated that even if the Straits are closed, Arnold Transit can still run 

passenger and freight services, they just need to keep the Coast Guard updated daily  

o Capacity  

▪ Coast Guard has become stricter over many things, especially traveling through ice 

▪ Straights II is not an "ice boat" 

▪ Freight boat Senator can carry up 100 people  

 

− Update on the Ottawa and Huron 

o Ottawa is waiting for electrical work to be completed 

▪ Looking at the first week in February for the electricians to come back and 

complete the work. Once on site, the work shouldn’t take more than a week  

o Huron 

▪ More progress is being made 

▪ Interior is being put back together 

▪ Looking more like mid-February before final work will be completed  

− Hours for Fresh Air  

o Plowing and daylight can delay morning flight times  

o First flight is typically 7:00 am or 7:30 am with the last flight being around 5:00 pm or 

5:15 pm - multiple planes are flying during this time 

▪ These hours are Monday through Friday only  

▪ Weekends currently have low demand, therefore providing a limited schedule  

 

− At this time, this is being referred to the Transportation Authority for further discussion. A 

representative from MITA will be in touch with Fresh Air.  

 

 

VIII. Adjournment 

There being no further business, motion made by Myers, seconded by Moskwa, to adjourn the meeting 

at 1:30 pm.  

Voting Yea: Chambers, Corrigan, Moskwa, Myers, Sehoyan, St. Onge 

 

7

Section V, Itemb.



8

Section VI, Itema.



Payroll February 6, 2025

Employee Rate of Pay Reg. OT Gross Wage

Bagbey, Gwendolyn $1,552.00 1 $1,552.00

Bradford, Justin $32.37 84 84 $2,761.08

Bradford, Justin - On Call $16.18 9 $145.62

Davis, Joseph $28.38 84 84 $2,425.92

Davis, Joseph - On Call $14.19 0 $0.00

Dombroski, Dennis $61.16 60 $3,669.60

Doud, Margaret  $382.00 1 $382.00

Dziobak, Andrew $32.37 84 $2,719.08

France, Trista $2,254.46 1 $2,254.46

Gruits, Michael $3,820.74 1 $3,820.74

Hagenbaug, James (Gym) $16.50 32 $528.00

Kaminen, Cory $30.83 84 84 $2,631.72

Leach, Danielle $1,884.35 1 $1,884.35

Linn, Richard $1,884.35 1 $1,884.35

Lipovsky, David $55.00 62 $3,410.00

Miedzianowski, Dwayne $30.83 84 $2,589.72

Miedzianowski, Dwayne - On Call $15.42 0 $0.00

Patay, Mary $1,840.34 1 $1,840.34

Pereny, Kathryn $23.78 46 $1,093.88

Rollins, Christine $23.00 26 $598.00

Ross, Christian $21.46 80 $1,716.80

Ruddle, Mike $29.90 80 10.5 $2,862.93

St. Onge, Anne L. $23.02 75 $1,726.50

Stafford, Audrey (Library) $15.34 30 $460.20

Stafford, Audrey (Gym) $16.50 32 $528.00

Stakoe, Joseph $1,046.01 1 $1,046.01

Wischmeyer, McKenna $20.00 32 $640.00

TOTAL $44,531.30

Prime 

Reg/OT 

(.50) Hldy
Vaca / 

Personl

9

Section VII, Itema.



Employee Earnings

Payroll period: 01/19/2025 - 02/01/2025 Pay day: 02/06/2025

Employee
Information Employment Earnings Deductions/Contributions Employee Taxes Employer Taxes Totals

Employee
Type Payment Description Hours Rate Total Description Employee

Deduction
Employer
Contribution Description Amount Description Amount Descriptio

n Amount

Bageby, Gwendolyn
Paid by the
hour

Direct Deposit Regular 80.00 $19.40 $1,552.00
Federal Income
Tax

$167.53 Social Security $96.22 Net Pay $1,199.79

Public Works Gross -- -- $1,552.00 Social Security $96.22 Medicare $22.50
Check
Amount

$1,199.79

7358 Market St.,
P.O. Box 455,
Mackinac Island, MI
49757

Medicare $22.50
MI State
Unemployment
Tax

$79.15
Employer
Cost

$1,749.87

MI State Tax $65.96 Total $197.87

Total $352.21

Bradford, Justin
Paid by the
hour

Direct Deposit Regular 84.00 $32.37 $2,719.08 457 Retirement $50.00 $522.53
Federal Income
Tax

$186.00 Social Security $180.22 Net Pay $1,975.28

Police Department
Night Shift
premium

-- -- $42.00 Rent $334.62 Social Security $180.22 Medicare $42.15
Check
Amount

$1,975.28

7374 Market St.,
Mackinac Island, MI
49757

On Call -- -- $145.62 POLC dues $26.50 Medicare $42.15
MI State
Unemployment
Tax

$100.79
Employer
Cost

$3,752.39

Rent -- -- $0.00 MI State Tax $111.93 Total $323.16

POLC dues -- -- $0.00 Total $520.30

Gross -- -- $2,906.70

Davis, Joseph
Paid by the
hour

Direct Deposit Regular 84.00 $28.38 $2,383.92
457 Roth
Retirement

$320.00 $702.99
Federal Income
Tax

$212.71 Social Security $150.41 Net Pay $1,335.71

Police Department
Night Shift
premium

-- -- $42.00 Rent $242.31 Social Security $150.41 Medicare $35.17
Check
Amount

$1,335.71

7374 Market St.,
Mackinac Island, MI
49757

Rent -- -- $0.00 POLC dues $26.50 Medicare $35.17
MI State
Unemployment
Tax

$123.72
Employer
Cost

$3,438.21

POLC dues -- -- $0.00 MI State Tax $103.11 Total $309.30

Gross -- -- $2,425.92 Total $501.40

Dombroski, Dennis
Paid by the
hour

Check Regular 60.00 $61.16 $3,669.60 457 Retirement $250.00 $150.00
Federal Income
Tax

$359.05 Social Security $225.43 Net Pay $2,604.89

Engineering Gross -- -- $3,669.60 Aflac Pre Tax $33.60 Social Security $225.43 Medicare $52.72
Check
Amount

$2,604.89

Report generated by

 
+

 

Payroll Journal Report
Payroll Period: 01/19/2025 - 02/01/2025
Report Created On: 02/04/2025

City of Mackinac Island
7358 Market St.
P.O. Box 455
Mackinac Island, MI 49757

1/6
10

Section VII, Itema.



7358 Market St.,
P.O. Box 455,
Mackinac Island, MI
49757

Medicare $52.72
MI State
Unemployment
Tax

$59.75
Employer
Cost

$4,157.50

MI State Tax $143.91 Total $337.90

Total $781.11

Doud, Margaret
Salary/Eligible
for overtime

Check Regular 80.00 $4.78 $382.00
Federal Income
Tax

$13.58 Social Security $23.69 Net Pay $322.95

Mayor Gross -- -- $382.00 Social Security $23.69 Medicare $5.54
Check
Amount

$322.95

7358 Market St.,
P.O. Box 455,
Mackinac Island, MI
49757

Medicare $5.54 Total $29.23
Employer
Cost

$411.23

MI State Tax $16.24

Total $59.05

Dziobak, Andrew
Paid by the
hour

Direct Deposit Regular 84.00 $32.37 $2,719.08 457 Retirement $200.00 $553.48
Federal Income
Tax

$259.64 Social Security $166.21 Net Pay $1,853.36

Police Department POLC dues -- -- $0.00 POLC dues $26.50 Social Security $166.21 Medicare $38.88
Check
Amount

$1,853.36

7374 Market St.,
Mackinac Island, MI
49757

Aflac After Tax -- -- $0.00 Aflac Pre Tax $38.22 Medicare $38.88
MI State
Unemployment
Tax

$138.67
Employer
Cost

$3,616.32

Gross -- -- $2,719.08 Aflac After Tax $40.31 MI State Tax $95.96 Total $343.76

Total $560.69

France, Trista
Salary/No
overtime

Direct Deposit Regular 80.00 $28.18 $2,254.46 457 Retirement $10.00
Federal Income
Tax

$210.97 Social Security $137.21 Net Pay $1,680.82

Mayor's assistant Aflac After Tax -- -- $0.00 Aflac Pre Tax $41.34 Social Security $137.21 Medicare $32.09
Check
Amount

$1,680.82

7358 Market St.,
P.O. Box 455,
Mackinac Island, MI
49757

Gross -- -- $2,254.46 Aflac After Tax $23.40 Medicare $32.09
MI State
Unemployment
Tax

$114.98
Employer
Cost

$2,538.74

MI State Tax $118.63 Total $284.28

Total $498.90

Gruits, Michael
Salary/No
overtime

Direct Deposit Regular 84.00 $42.74 $3,589.99 457 Retirement $62.50 $559.20
Federal Income
Tax

$504.28 Social Security $236.89 Net Pay $2,801.94

Police Department Rent -- -- $230.75 Social Security $236.89 Medicare $55.40
Check
Amount

$2,801.94

7374 Market St.,
Mackinac Island, MI
49757

Gross -- -- $3,820.74 Medicare $55.40
MI State
Unemployment
Tax

$69.28
Employer
Cost

$4,741.51

MI State Tax $159.73 Total $361.57

Total $956.30

Employee
Information Employment Earnings Deductions/Contributions Employee Taxes Employer Taxes Totals

Employee
Type Payment Description Hours Rate Total Description Employee

Deduction
Employer
Contribution Description Amount Description Amount Descriptio

n Amount

2/6
11

Section VII, Itema.



Hagenbaugh,
James

Paid by the
hour

Direct Deposit Regular 32.00 $16.50 $528.00 Social Security $32.73 Social Security $32.73 Net Pay $465.18

Marine Rescue Gross -- -- $528.00 Medicare $7.65 Medicare $7.65
Check
Amount

$465.18

7358 Market St.,
P.O. Box 455,
Mackinac Island, MI
49757

MI State Tax $22.44 Total $40.38
Employer
Cost

$568.38

Total $62.82

Kaminen, Cory
Paid by the
hour

Direct Deposit Regular 84.00 $30.83 $2,589.72 457 Retirement $45.00 $387.14
Federal Income
Tax

$171.16 Social Security $161.99 Net Pay $2,080.01

Police Department
Night Shift
premium

-- -- $42.00 POLC dues $26.50 Social Security $161.99 Medicare $37.88
Check
Amount

$2,080.01

7342 Market St,
Mackinac Island, MI
49757

POLC dues -- -- $0.00 Aflac Pre Tax $19.02 Medicare $37.88
MI State
Unemployment
Tax

$134.22
Employer
Cost

$3,352.95

Gross -- -- $2,631.72 MI State Tax $90.16 Total $334.09

Total $461.19

Leach, Danielle
Salary/No
overtime

Direct Deposit Regular 80.00 $23.55 $1,884.35 457 Retirement $50.00
Federal Income
Tax

$160.95 Social Security $116.43 Net Pay $1,089.48

City Clerk's Office Rent -- -- $0.00 Rent $346.15 Social Security $116.43 Medicare $27.23
Check
Amount

$1,089.48

7358 Market St.,
P.O. Box 455,
Mackinac Island, MI
49757

Gross -- -- $1,884.35 Aflac Pre Tax $6.42 Medicare $27.23 Total $143.66
Employer
Cost

$2,028.01

MI State Tax $87.69

Total $392.30

Linn, Richard
Salary/No
overtime

Direct Deposit Regular 80.00 $23.55 $1,884.35
457 Roth
Retirement

$1,502.04
Federal Income
Tax

$167.56 Social Security $116.83
Employer
Cost

$2,028.50

City Treasurer Gross -- -- $1,884.35 Social Security $116.83 Medicare $27.32

7358 Market St.,
P.O. Box 455,
Mackinac Island, MI
49757

Medicare $27.32 Total $144.15

MI State Tax $70.60

Total $382.31

Lipovsky II, David
Paid by the
hour

Direct Deposit Regular 62.00 $55.00 $3,410.00 457 Retirement $100.00 $150.00
Federal Income
Tax

$240.39 Social Security $211.42 Net Pay $2,668.06

Engineering Gross -- -- $3,410.00 Social Security $211.42 Medicare $49.45
Check
Amount

$2,668.06

7358 Market St.,
P.O. Box 455,
Mackinac Island, MI
49757

Medicare $49.45
MI State
Unemployment
Tax

$136.43
Employer
Cost

$3,957.30

Employee
Information Employment Earnings Deductions/Contributions Employee Taxes Employer Taxes Totals

Employee
Type Payment Description Hours Rate Total Description Employee

Deduction
Employer
Contribution Description Amount Description Amount Descriptio

n Amount

3/6
12

Section VII, Itema.



MI State Tax $140.68 Total $397.30

Total $641.94

Miedzianowski,
Dwayne

Paid by the
hour

Direct Deposit Regular 84.00 $30.83 $2,589.72 Rent $150.00
Federal Income
Tax

$237.27 Social Security $157.76 Net Pay $1,770.88

Police Department Rent -- -- $0.00 POLC dues $26.50 Social Security $157.76 Medicare $36.90
Check
Amount

$1,770.88

7374 Market St.,
Mackinac Island, MI
49757

POLC dues -- -- $0.00 Aflac Pre Tax $45.15 Medicare $36.90
MI State
Unemployment
Tax

$132.08
Employer
Cost

$2,916.46

Aflac After Tax -- -- $0.00 Aflac After Tax $57.12 MI State Tax $108.14 Total $326.74

Gross -- -- $2,589.72 Total $540.07

Patay, Mary
Salary/No
overtime

Direct Deposit Regular 80.00 $23.00 $1,840.34 457 Retirement $70.00
Federal Income
Tax

$165.64 Social Security $109.93 Net Pay $1,318.74

Recreation
department

Aflac After Tax -- -- $0.00 Aflac Pre Tax $67.40 Social Security $109.93 Medicare $25.70
Check
Amount

$1,318.74

7358 Market St.,
P.O. Box 455,
Mackinac Island, MI
49757

Gross -- -- $1,840.34 Aflac After Tax $10.56 Medicare $25.70
MI State
Unemployment
Tax

$93.86
Employer
Cost

$2,069.83

MI State Tax $72.37 Total $229.49

Total $373.64

Pereny, Kathryn
Paid by the
hour

Direct Deposit Regular 46.00 $23.78 $1,093.88
Federal Income
Tax

$43.62 Social Security $67.82 Net Pay $920.09

Engineering Gross -- -- $1,093.88 Social Security $67.82 Medicare $15.86
Check
Amount

$920.09

7358 Market St.,
P.O. Box 455,
Mackinac Island, MI
49757

Medicare $15.86
MI State
Unemployment
Tax

$55.79
Employer
Cost

$1,233.35

MI State Tax $46.49 Total $139.47

Total $173.79

Rollins, Christine
Paid by the
hour

Direct Deposit Regular 26.00 $23.00 $598.00
Federal Income
Tax

$2.11 Social Security $37.07 Net Pay $524.73

City Clerk's Office Gross -- -- $598.00 Social Security $37.07 Medicare $8.67
Check
Amount

$524.73

7358 Market St.,
P.O. Box 455,
Mackinac Island, MI
49757

Medicare $8.67
MI State
Unemployment
Tax

$30.50
Employer
Cost

$674.24

MI State Tax $25.42 Total $76.24

Total $73.27

Ross, Christian
Paid by the
hour

Direct Deposit Regular 80.00 $21.46 $1,716.80
Federal Income
Tax

$127.61 Social Security $106.44 Net Pay $1,384.90

Public Works Gross -- -- $1,716.80 Social Security $106.44 Medicare $24.89
Check
Amount

$1,384.90

Employee
Information Employment Earnings Deductions/Contributions Employee Taxes Employer Taxes Totals

Employee
Type Payment Description Hours Rate Total Description Employee

Deduction
Employer
Contribution Description Amount Description Amount Descriptio

n Amount

4/6
13

Section VII, Itema.



7358 Market St.,
P.O. Box 455,
Mackinac Island, MI
49757

Medicare $24.89
MI State
Unemployment
Tax

$87.56
Employer
Cost

$1,935.69

MI State Tax $72.96 Total $218.89

Total $331.90

Ruddle, Michael
Paid by the
hour

Direct Deposit Regular 80.00 $29.90 $2,392.00
Federal Income
Tax

$343.69 Social Security $177.50 Net Pay $2,188.04

Public Works Overtime 10.50 $44.85 $470.93 Social Security $177.50 Medicare $41.51
Check
Amount

$2,188.04

7358 Market St.,
P.O. Box 455,
Mackinac Island, MI
49757

Gross -- -- $2,862.93 Medicare $41.51
MI State
Unemployment
Tax

$146.01
Employer
Cost

$3,227.95

MI State Tax $112.19 Total $365.02

Total $674.89

St. Onge, Anne
Paid by the
hour

Direct Deposit Regular 75.00 $23.02 $1,726.50 457 Retirement $25.00
Federal Income
Tax

$159.26 Social Security $103.84 Net Pay $1,292.28

Library Gross -- -- $1,726.50 Aflac Pre Tax $51.72 Social Security $103.84 Medicare $24.28
Check
Amount

$1,292.28

7358 Market St.,
P.O. Box 455,
Mackinac Island, MI
49757

Medicare $24.28
MI State
Unemployment
Tax

$88.05
Employer
Cost

$1,942.67

MI State Tax $70.12 Total $216.17

Total $357.50

Stafford, Audrey
Paid by the
hour

Direct Deposit Regular 62.00 $15.94 $988.20
Federal Income
Tax

$56.13 Social Security $61.27 Net Pay $814.47

Library Gross -- -- $988.20 Social Security $61.27 Medicare $14.33
Check
Amount

$814.47

7358 Market St.,
P.O. Box 455,
Mackinac Island, MI
49757

Medicare $14.33
MI State
Unemployment
Tax

$50.40
Employer
Cost

$1,114.20

MI State Tax $42.00 Total $126.00

Total $173.73

Stakoe, Joseph
Salary/Eligible
for overtime

Direct Deposit Regular 80.00 $13.08 $1,046.02
Federal Income
Tax

$47.12 Social Security $64.85 Net Pay $874.42

City Assessor Gross -- -- $1,046.02 Social Security $64.85 Medicare $15.17
Check
Amount

$874.42

Employee
Information Employment Earnings Deductions/Contributions Employee Taxes Employer Taxes Totals

Employee
Type Payment Description Hours Rate Total Description Employee

Deduction
Employer
Contribution Description Amount Description Amount Descriptio

n Amount

5/6
14

Section VII, Itema.



7358 Market St.,
P.O. Box 455,
Mackinac Island, MI
49757

Medicare $15.17
MI State
Unemployment
Tax

$53.35
Employer
Cost

$1,179.39

MI State Tax $44.46 Total $133.37

Total $171.60

Wischmeyer,
Mckenna

Paid by the
hour

Direct Deposit Gross -- -- $0.00 Total $0.00 Total $0.00

Police Department

7374 Market St.,
Mackinac Island, MI
49757

Payroll Totals Regular 1587.00 $27.45 $43,558.01 457 Retirement $862.50 $2,322.35
Federal Income
Tax

$3,836.27 Social Security $2,742.16 Net Pay $31,166.02

Overtime 10.50 $44.85 $470.93 Rent $1,073.08 Social Security $2,742.16 Medicare $641.29
Check
Amount

$31,166.02

Night Shift
premium

-- -- $126.00 POLC dues $132.50 Medicare $641.29
MI State
Unemployment
Tax

$1,694.59
Employer
Cost

$52,634.69

On Call -- -- $145.62
457 Roth
Retirement

$1,822.04 $702.99 MI State Tax $1,821.19 Total $5,078.04

Rent -- -- $230.75 Aflac Pre Tax $302.87 Total $9,040.91

Rent -- -- $0.00 Aflac After Tax $131.39

POLC dues -- -- $0.00

Aflac After Tax -- -- $0.00

Gross -- -- $44,531.31

Employee
Information Employment Earnings Deductions/Contributions Employee Taxes Employer Taxes Totals

Employee
Type Payment Description Hours Rate Total Description Employee

Deduction
Employer
Contribution Description Amount Description Amount Descriptio

n Amount

6/6
15

Section VII, Itema.



Employee Earnings

Off Cycle Payroll Pay day: 01/24/2025

Employee
Information Employment Earnings Deductions/Contributions Employee Taxes Employer Taxes Totals

Employee
Type Payment Description Hours Rate Total Description Employee

Deduction
Employer
Contribution Description Amount Description Amount Descriptio

n Amount

Wischmeyer,
Mckenna

Paid by the
hour

Direct Deposit Regular 32.00 $20.00 $640.00
Federal Income
Tax

$6.31 Social Security $39.68 Net Pay $557.53

Police Department Gross -- -- $640.00 Social Security $39.68 Medicare $9.28
Check
Amount

$557.53

7374 Market St.,
Mackinac Island, MI
49757

Medicare $9.28
MI State
Unemployment
Tax

$32.64
Employer
Cost

$721.60

MI State Tax $27.20 Total $81.60

Total $82.47

Report generated by

 
+

 

Payroll Journal Report
Off Cycle Payroll
Report Created On: 01/22/2025

City of Mackinac Island
7358 Market St.
P.O. Box 455
Mackinac Island, MI 49757

1/1
16

Section VII, Itema.



CITY OF MACKINAC ISLAND ACCOUNTS PAYABLES

FEBRUARY 5, 2025

PAYROLL 01.19.2025 - 02.01.2025 (Pay Date: 02.06.2025) $53,356.29

NORTHERN APPRAISAL 01.19.2025 - 02.01.2025  (Pay Date: 02.06.2025) $1,046.01

APT TECHNOLOGIES JANUARY 2025 MEETING SERVICES $550.00

ASTREA CITY INTERNET $401.99

AT&T ELEVATOR LINES $227.83

CITY OF MACKINAC ISLAND HRA REIMBURSEMENTS $349.73

CLOVERLAND CITY ELECTRIC BILLS (12.19.24 - 01.21.25) $11,925.48

DPW ST MARTINS KEYS DEPOSIT $1,400.00

DPW CITY WATER BILLS $629.51

ELECTION SOURCE ANNUAL MAINTENANCE & PETITION PACKETS $663.66

GAMETIME REC DEPT - CHAIN NET TURTLE PARK $2,502.07

GDS ASSOCIATES, INC. REGULATORY SERVICES - BOAT $340.00

ID NETWORKS MIPD MAINT. FEE FOR FINGER PRINTING (1.1.25 - 12.31.25) $2,995.00

ISLAND HARDWARE GAS MIPD & CITY SHOP - SUPPLIES CITY SHOP $2,019.83

LEXISNEXIS MIPD - RISK DATA MANAGEMENT (SEP - DEC. 2024) $800.00

M.I. FIREFIGHTER ASSOCIATION REIMBURSEMENT FOR FOG WORKX - TRAINING $108.96

MICHAEL RUDDLE REIMBURSEMENT FOR TRACTOR PARTS $247.13

METLIFE DENTAL $893.89

NABCO FEBRUARY HEALTH COVERAGE $304.40

PNC CITY CREDIT CARD CHARGES $2,928.07

QUILL LIBRARY OFFICE  SUPPLIES $269.41

SUNSET FOREST ASSOCIATION SNOW PLOW FUND (11.01.24 - 10.31.25) $400.00

SUPERIORLAND COOPERATIVE FY 2024/2025 ANNUAL CONTRIBUTION - LIBRARY $425.00

ST. IGNACE NEWS MASTER PLAN AD $130.00

SYSCO CITY SHOP SUPPLIES $125.52

TRI COUNTY BLDNG CENTERS REC DEPARTMENT $136.32

TROPHY CASE REC DEPT - VOLUNTEER OF THE YEAR AWARD $112.00

UNITED STATES POST OFFICE CITY HALL STAMPS $73.00

TOTAL $85,361.10

17

Section VII, Itemb.



 

 

Public Safety Committee Meeting       01/15/2025 

            2:00 p.m. 

      (S. Moskwa, T. Corrigan, A. Myers, Margaret Doud) 

     (Erin Evashevski, M. Gruits, M. Ruddle, D. Leach, Allen Burt, Lindsey White) 

 

Discussion of Senior Transport MIPD – Chief Mike Gruits met with the committee about the 

senior transport, the recently updated and changed items on the forms policy for this winter 

season. The committee and Chief Gruits spoke in depth about the times, staff, the amount of 

transports between 50-60 a day with the lack of snow, the discussion was around the necessity of 

the transport trips, officer safety concerns, history was a part of the conversation and the written 

policy, the time frame was instituted due to lack of staff and shift changes, alcohol consumption, 

the taxi being available for taxi services was talked about and how they are underutilized, that the 

transport should not be a taxi service. During previous meetings changes were talked about and 

the committee had asked in the past for the MIPD to figure out their changes and bring it back to 

committee for approvals/communication purposes so the council and committee can be aware of 

possible changes and weigh in on them moving forward. At this time the policy will remain the 

same, however if changes are being made the committee would like to see them and we can 

revisit the current policy with the possible hiring of the extra officer to be fully staffed to extend 

the hours on the weekends. At this time the officers are trying to accommodate some of those 

later trips, however it comes down to manpower, chief Gruits possibly can look at current 

schedules to see if we can accommodate this request. This is a possible ongoing discussion.  

 

Continued Discussion of K-9 Position MIPD – Chief Mike Gruits met with the Committee 

about the K-9 position, He was approached by a donor that is willing to pay for the annual salary 

of $1,220.00, that will help maintain the dogs and their work. She is requesting $20.00 an hour if 

activated. In the event of a search her dog is able to follow a scent, and is a cadaver dog. She also 

has a therapy K-9. She can offer support to officers, school students, medical care staff and other 

EMS responders for their well-being. She can be used in a crisis. She is willing to be a private 

contractor. The Committee has asked the chief to track the utilization of Sue and her K-9’s if 

approved at Council. The Committee recommends approving this as a temporary basis, starting 

in the new April 1, 2025 budget and is to be reviewed in a one-year period next February 2026 to 

assess the use of her contract. 

  

Continued Discussion of Social Worker Position MIPD – Chief Gruits spoke to the committee 

about the need of a social worker position, however if he has to choose between the office 

priorities he believes the additional officer is the bigger priority and more of a dire need. The 

committee has still asked for the MIPD to apply for the grant for the Social worker position 

previously discussed in other meetings. There was some discussion if a Social worker would be a 

better fit for another organization. Chief Gruits informed the committee the grant funding is only 

for a new position for a police station. This is an ongoing discussion.   

 

 

 

 

 
18

Section VIII, Itema.



 

Discussion of possibly adding the hiring of a 6th officer (Part Time Seasonal) in February, 

not to exceed the 9-month mark – Chief Gruits spoke with the committee in length about 

response, emergencies, routine patrol, transport services, incidents, summer and winter activity 

on the Island and response times. Currently there is one officer working alone on the night shift, 

which is a concern for the officer on duty and feels insufficient. Chief Gruits spoke to the 

committee about a properly staffed police department which would be two officers on during the 

day shifts and two officers on during the night shifts. There is an officer the MIPD has in mind 

and ready to start work during February. The committee has asked myself and chief Gruits to 

work on some numbers as this was not budgeted for, pay rate, weekly hours, some mock up 

schedules and current budgetary numbers. This is an ongoing discussion.   

 

Discussion of E-bikes, Signage and the Ordinance. – There was a short discussion about 

enforcement, signs and an Ordinance Committee Meeting needed. E-bikes has been sent to the 

next Public Safety Committee meeting on January 29th at 2:00pm, so the committee would have 

more time to go in depth and discuss this subject.  

 

Discussion of possible weekly or bi-weekly chief notes to Mayor and Public Safety 

Committee, similar to what Allen Burt does for the DPW/City Council – Steve talked to 

chief Gruits about doing a biweekly update of some of the informational items that take place, 

not police information, appropriate community type information and updates of incident 

summaries, etc. Chief Gruits agreed and will be sending out some communication to keep 

Council and the Mayor up to date with the happenings on the Island. Currently he does provide 

the Mayor with updates.  

19

Section VIII, Itema.



 

 

Public Safety Committee Meeting       01/29/2025 

            2:00 p.m. 

      (S. Moskwa, T. Corrigan, A. Myers, Margaret Doud) 

     (Erin Evashevski, M. Gruits,) 

 

 

Continued Discussion of K-9 Position MIPD – At the last council meeting the K-9 subject was 

sent back to Committee level. Chief Gruits spoke again to the Committee about having a donor 

and the money ready to pay for the annual Salary of $1,220.00 for the first year of the contract. 

He would like approach this topic a little less about the money and about the unique skill set this 

can provide at least for a year and see how it goes and reevaluate. We can budget for the $20.00 

an hour activation. The other entities should they want to use the services would have to reach 

out to Sue Stejskal and her K-9 unit if they want to use the services. The committee has 

recommended to move forward with the contract for the K-9 unit with the same stipulations as 

previously discussed. They have asked the Chief of Police to bring to council in writing the 

clarification as to her abilities, services, emergency situations, uses and time frames etc.     

  

Continued Discussion of Social Worker Position MIPD – Chief Gruits informed to council he 

was working with someone at Hiawatha Services to provide a social worker and mental health 

services at the Mackinac Island Medical Center a couple times a week and they would be 

available for online consultations. He believes this is a better fit for this position instead of the 

MIPD at this time.  

 

Discussion of possibly adding the hiring of a 6th officer (Part Time Seasonal) in February, 

not to exceed the 9-month mark – Chief Gruits presented the numbers to the Committee that 

we worked out. The pay for two months on the higher pay grade would be approximately 

$6,000.00 in advance of the upcoming season and current budget. Chief Gruits provided 

schedules and financials. MIPD would like to employ the candidate mid-February. The 

department had a deficiency in officers when chief Gruits was promoted to Chief. City attorney 

and chief Gruits will work on the proper pay rate that matches the collective bargaining 

agreement, which could result in the $6,000.00 to be a lower rate. After extensive conversations 

with the Committee and City Attorney, the Committee recommends hiring the part time seasonal 

officer this year earlier than April 2025.    

 

Discussion of E-bikes, Signage and the Ordinance. – Signage for current speed limits, State 

Park and the City need to move forward with the signage to be able to have them hung and 

available by no later than April. The committee had a conversation about the signs and 

placements of the signage. By the Library, by Mission Point and at Fort Street, dual sides so a 

total of 6 signs on M-185 with the speed limits on them. After lengthy conversations of 

placement, how many signs, etc. the Committee has asked City Foreman Mike Ruddle and Chief 

Gruits to work with Myron Johnson at the State Park to keep this moving forward. Chief Gruits 

also touched on the information campaign previously talked about in other meetings for 

informational purposes to residents and visitors.  

 
20

Section VIII, Itemb.



21

Section X, Itema.



22

Section X, Itema.



23

Section X, Itema.



24

Section X, Itema.



25

Section X, Itema.



26

Section X, Itema.



27

Section X, Itema.



28

Section X, Itema.



29

Section X, Itema.



30

Section X, Itema.



31

Section X, Itema.



32

Section X, Itema.



33

Section X, Itema.



34

Section X, Itema.



35

Section X, Itema.



36

Section X, Itema.



37

Section X, Itema.



38

Section X, Itema.



39

Section X, Itema.



40

Section X, Itema.



41

Section X, Itema.



42

Section X, Itema.



43

Section X, Itema.



44

Section X, Itema.



45

Section X, Itemb.



46

Section X, Itemb.



47

Section X, Itemb.



48

Section X, Itemb.



49

Section X, Itemb.



50

Section X, Itemb.



51

Section X, Itemb.



52

Section X, Itemb.



53

Section X, Itemb.



54

Section X, Itemb.



55

Section X, Itemb.



56

Section X, Itemb.



57

Section X, Itemb.



58

Section X, Itemb.



59

Section X, Itemb.



60

Section X, Itemb.



61

Section X, Itemb.



62

Section X, Itemb.



63

Section X, Itemc.



64

Section X, Itemc.



65

Section X, Itemc.



66

Section X, Itemc.



67

Section X, Itemc.



68

Section X, Itemc.



69

Section X, Itemc.



 

2024 ANNUAL REPORT 

December 2024 

Welcome,  

The following report details the activities of Mackinac Marine Rescue (MMR) over the last year. The MMR crew continues 
to train hard to meet the needs of the Straits community.  The passion for community service among this crew is humbling.  

The MMR season started with the rescue of two gentlemen who had been kayaking off the northern shores of St. Ignace. 
The call came in with only a vague location. Daylight was just beginning to fade. The water temperatures were in the 
low 50s. We, and they, got lucky. We found one swamped, but empty, kayak and worked our way toward shore 
following the wind and waves quickly locating the two. Once onboard, they were treated for serious hypothermia. The 
crew jumped into action to get them as dry as possible and warming up. The boaters had spent nearly an hour in the 
cold water. I don’t think they would have lasted much longer. Both kayaks fully sank and were never recovered. 

On a rough and windy day, we received a call for an overturned boat near Devil’s Kitchen. With emergency crews on 
shore giving us a precise location, the U.S. Coast Guard 29’ boat, Shepler’s ferry, and MMR all arrived on scene at the 
same time. Working together, all three boats retrieved the 5 victims and their dog safely and coordinated their return to 
shore in St. Ignace. All were in good shape. USCG, emergency response on the Island, and MMR coordinated to collect 

and return as much of the boater’s personal property as possible.  

Of all the runs we had last summer, none hit the crew, and the community, harder than the drowning of Mari Dyer. Many 
of the crew knew her personally. I have gone over that run many, many times in my mind and I do not see anything we 
could have done differently to have reached a good outcome. Everyone did everything they were trained to do to the 
best of their ability. It was truly a tragedy. I never want to look in another family member’s eyes again and apologize 
for not being able to answer the question “Why?”    

The 68 runs and the long hours of training performed by MMR last season are a testament to the community service 
commitment of this crew. The crew continues to work to learn new skills and sharpen the old training.  

As always, we are thankful for the support of the Council, local community, and that of the larger Straits region. 

With best regards,  

Commander Allen Burt 

 

 

 

Crew 2024 
 

Allen Burt Commander Megan Czarnecki Deckhand 

Anthony Arabie Coxswain Brian Gist Deckhand 

Sam Barnwell Coxswain Trista Horn Deckhand 

Kevin Leach Coxswain Corey Kaminen Deckhand 

70

Section XI, Itemb.



Taylor Bulla Engineer Nathan Ohse Deckhand 

Ellen Davey Engineer Mary Patay Deckhand 

Jimmy Hagenbaugh Engineer Chuck Pereny Deckhand 

Jack Stack Engineer Justin Wright Deckhand 

Stephanie McGreevy Engineer/admin   

    

 
 

Year in Review 

Medical Evacuations (MEDEVAC): 

MEDEVAC responses continue to be an important part of MMR’s mission. During the summer of 2024, 
MMR conducted 37 MEDEVAC missions up 54% from the past year.  Working with the Mackinac Island 
Medical Center we assisted in the transfer of medical and trauma patients to a higher level of care on 
the mainland.  An integrated system of patients, physicians, nurses, EMS, and MMR staff all worked 
together for the most efficient and best transport for the patient.  MMR received critical calls from Bois 
Blanc Island Fire/EMS again this summer requesting transportation to the mainland for 911 calls when 
flights were unavailable.   

 

 

Search and Rescue (SAR): 

MMR responded to 13 search and rescue missions that were called into 911.  This is a 333% increase 
over the past year.  The SAR missions MMR responded to this season were related to boats aground, 
drowning victims, adrift vessels and missing swimmers.  

 

71

Section XI, Itemb.



 

Assists Other Agencies:         

On 21 separate occasions Mackinac Marine Rescue was called to assist other agencies during 2024.  
Events MMR supported: Mackinac Island’s Fourth of July fireworks and Labor Day Bridge Walk.   
 
MMR continued to be an asset to the community as we regularly returning EMS and police personnel to 
the island after they had escorted patients to the mainland on the last boat. Thanks to this assistance, 
EMTs and officers serve Mackinac Island for the remainder of the night. MMR has also assisted Mackinac 
County’s 911 and Emergency Management. 

 

 
 

 
Vessel Aground MMR before patrolling 

Mackinac Bridge’s Labor 
Day Walk 

Adrift Vessel   

 

Chemical, Biological, Radiological, Nuclear and High Yield Explosives Detection (CBRNE): 

Mackinac Marine Rescue was initially funded by a FEMA port security grant.  Part of the grant required 
the boat be equipped with hazardous materials screening equipment and the crew be trained in its use.  
MMR met these expectations with random, passive screening of vessels and docks while underway this 
summer.  MMR acted as a PRND (Preventive Radiological Nuclear Detection) screening vessel during the 
Mackinac Bridge Labor Day walk in 2024.  Being able to use the PRND equipment while underway for 
other missions kept our staff current on its use even with a limited number of events. On July 27th, MMR 
was asked by Mackinac Island Fire Department to stand by to use the RAD detection equipment for a 
bomb threat called into the City of Mackinac Island’s Community Hall.  Fortunately, the threat was false.   

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

Medevac Search and Rescue (SAR) Assist Other Agency Total Emergency Responces

2020

2021

2022

2023

2024

72

Section XI, Itemb.



  

Training: 

MMR had 23 training sessions with over 45 hours.  MMR took advantage of every available opportunity 
to train and work with our new members including time with our partner, USCG Station St. Ignace.  We 
train to the standards of our United States Coast Guard (USCG) counterparts, and this is a high bar to 
reach.   Training can include docking, cross towing with USCG29, driver training, and search pattern drills 
among other duties. 

 
  

Training Future Coxswain Dry Suit and Stokes Basket 
Training 

Tactical Emergency 
Casualty Care Training  

With the assistance of Mackinac Island EMS, MMR personnel have renewed their CPR skills and obtained 
certification in the Stop The Bleed program every other year.  In 2024, the team worked with EMS for 
TECC, Tactical Emergency Casualty Care designed to present a strong foundation of topics, concepts, 
principles, and skills specific to delivering emergency medical care for patients in a civilian tactical 
environment.  This training was provided by a grant from Mackinac Island Community Foundation. 

 

 

Partnerships:  

Working together and building relationships with our area partners has been a cornerstone of the MMR 
mission since our inception.  We are proud of the relationships we have fostered and how these 
relationships have improved our team and joint responses.  The Mackinac Marine Rescue Team could not 
be successful without the help and support of our partners.   

In addition to the City of Mackinac Island, there are many agencies that assisted in making MMR a 
successful program. We would especially like to thank the following:  

• All-Star Marine (Motor installation and on-going maintenance) 

• Mackinac State Historic Parks (Indoor equipment storage) 

• Village of Mackinaw City (Fuel access 24/7) 

• United States Coast Guard (Training and operational support) 

• Chad and Larry Belonga (Official Trailered Transport Driver) 

• Arnold Transit (Off-season vessel storage) 

• Mackinac Island DNR Marina Crew (Dockage) 
 

73

Section XI, Itemb.



Working with the Mackinac Island Community Foundation (MICF) in 2020, the MMR team members began 
a fund within the MICF. Thanks to generous support from donors, this endowment continues to grow, and 
our crew has high hopes this fund will support MMR for generations to come.  

 

 
  

Arnold Transit:  Winter 
Storage 

Early morning run Boat pull day with the Belonga 
family.   

 

74

Section XI, Itemb.



1 

City of Mackinac Island 
Resolution for Poverty Exemption 

Resolution No. 25-002 

 
 
WHEREAS, the adoption of guidelines and application for a poverty exemption is required of the 
Mackinac Island City Council, and 
 
WHEREAS, the principal residence of persons, who the Assessor and Board of Review determines by 
reason of poverty to be unable to contribute to the public charge, is eligible for exemption in whole 
or in part from taxation under Public Act 390 of 1994 (MCL 211.7u); and 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to PA 390 of 1994, the City of Mackinac, Mackinac County adopts the following 
guidelines for the Board of Review to implement.  The guidelines shall include but be limited to the 
specific income and asset levels of the claimant and all persons residing in the household, including 
any property tax credit returns, filed in the current or immediately preceding year; 
 
To be eligible, a person shall do all the following on an annual basis: 
 
 1)    Be owner of the occupancy as a principal residence the property for which an exemption is 
  requested. 
 2) File a claim with the Assessor or Board of Review, accompanied by federal and state income 
  tax returns for all persons residing in the principal residence, including any property tax  
  returns filed in the immediately preceding year or in the current year. 
 3) File a claim reporting that the combined assets of all persons do not exceed the overall asset 
  limit of $20,000.  Assets include but are not limited to, real estate other than the principal 
  residence, personal property, motor vehicles, recreational vehicles and equipment,   
  certificates of deposit, savings accounts, checking accounts, stocks, bonds, life insurance, 
  retirement funds, etc. 
 4) Produce a valid driver’s license or other form of identification. 
 5) Produce, if requested, a deed, land contract, or other evidence of ownership of the property 
  for which an exemption is requested. 
 6) Meet the federal poverty income guidelines as defined and determined annually by the  
  United States Department of Health and Human Services or alternative guidelines adopted 
  by the governing body providing the alternative guidelines do not provide eligibility   
  requirements less than the federal guidelines. 
 7) The application for an exemption shall be filed after January 1, but one day prior to the last 
  day of the Board of Review.  The filing of this claim constitutes an appearance before the 
  Board of Review for the purpose of preserving the right to appeal to the Michigan Tax  
  Tribunal. 
 

75

Section XI, Itemc.



2 

The following re the federal poverty income guidelines which are updated annually by the United 
States Department of Health and Human Services.  The annual allowable income includes income for 
all persons residing in the principal residence. 

Income Guidelines 
Used in the Determination of Poverty Exemptions for 2025 

 
Below are the federal poverty guidelines updated annually in the federal register by the US 
Department of Health and Human Services which sere adopted in 2025; the City of Mackinac Island 
will follow these guidelines for establishing poverty exemptions for the 2025 assessments: 
 
 

Single Family Unit Poverty Guidelines 

1 $15,060 

2 $20,440 

3 $25,820 

4 $31,200 

5 $36,580 

6 $41,960 

7 $47,340 

8 $52,720 

For Each Additional Person $5,380 

 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED that the Assessor and Board of Review shall 

follow the above stated policy and federal guidelines in granting or denying an exemption. 
 
The foregoing resolution offered by the Mackinac Island City Council Member___________________ 
And supported by Mackinac Island City Council Member ___________________________. 
 
Upon roll call vote, the following voted: 
 
 
Ayes: _____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Nays: ______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
The Mackinac Island City Clerk declared the resolution ________________. 

 
             ____________________________________ 
             Danielle Leach, City Clerk 
 

             _____________________ 
             Date 

76

Section XI, Itemc.



City of Mackinac Island 
Assessor Contact Information & Policy Regarding 

Access to Assessment Records 
 

Assessor:   Joseph C. Stakoe, Michigan Advanced Assessing Officer (MAAO) R-7192 
    Michigan Certified Personal Property Examiner (PPE) 
    Michigan Certified General Real Estate Appraiser (CGA) No. 1205003788 
 
Phone Number:  231-590-4096 
 
E-Mail    jstakoe@nappraisal.net (Petoskey Office) 
    jstakoe@cityofmi.org (Mackinac Island Office) 
 
Mailing Address:  City of Mackinac Island 
    P.O. Box 187 
    Mackinac Island, MI 49757 
 
Response Time:  A response time of 1 business day is generally expected.  On occasion a
    response time up to 7 days may be used, as permitted by the stature. 
 
Office Hours:   The assessor will hold office hours as needed, however is accessible by 
    phone or e-mail during regular business hours, 9 AM to 5 PM, Monday 
    through Friday, weekly. 
 
In Person Meetings:  The assessor will be available to meet in person.  Contact the assessor 
    to schedule a meeting time. 
     
Questions/Disputes:  Throughout the year and upon receipt of the annual Notice of  
    Assessment, Taxable Valuation, and Property Classification, taxpayers 
    with questions or concerns are encouraged to contact the assessor.  The 
    assessor will make reasonable efforts to hear taxpayer concerns,  
    gather additional information if needed, take appropriate action in 
    response, and convey the outcome to the taxpayer. 
 
Inspections/Copy Requests: Requests to inspect and/or copy assessment records will be accepted 
    and responded to in accordance with the City of Mackinac Island FOIA 
    Policy: Guidelines, section 4, of Michigan Freedom of Information Act, 
    MCL 15.234. 
 
Records Location:  Assessing records are officially retained at the City of Mackinac Island 
    office located at 7358 Market Street, Mackinac Island, MI 49757. 
 
Adopted at the Regular Meeting on ______________ 
 
 
Signature:    __________________________________ 
                      Danielle M. Leach, City Clerk    

77

Section XI, Itemd.

mailto:jstakoe@nappraisal.net
mailto:jstakoe@cityofmi.org


78

Section XI, Iteme.



79

Section XI, Itemf.



80

Section XI, Itemf.



81

Section XI, Itemf.



82

Section XI, Itemf.



83

Section XI, Itemf.



84

Section XI, Itemf.



85

Section XI, Itemf.



86

Section XI, Itemg.



87

Section XI, Itemg.



88

Section XI, Itemg.



89

Section XI, Itemg.



90

Section XI, Itemg.



91

Section XI, Itemg.



92

Section XI, Itemg.



93

Section XI, Itemg.



94

Section XI, Itemg.



95

Section XI, Itemg.



96

Section XI, Itemh.



97

Section XI, Itemi.



98

Section XI, Itemi.



99

Section XI, Itemi.



100

Section XI, Itemj.



101

Section XI, Itemk.



102

Section XI, Itemk.



103

Section XI, Iteml.



104

Section XI, Itemm.



105

Section XI, Itemm.



106

Section XI, Itemm.


	Top
	Section V, Itema.	Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting, held on January 22, 2025
	January 22, 2025 Regular City Council Meeting Minutes

	Section V, Itemb.	Minutes of the Special City Council Meeting, held on January 29, 2025
	January 29, 2025 Special City Council Meeting Minutes - Ferry & Air Transportation

	Section VI, Itema.	February 5, 2025 Treasurer's Report
	Treasurer's Report February 5, 2025

	Section VII, Itema.	February 6, 2025 Payroll
	Payroll Spreadsheet 02.06.2025
	02.06.2025 Gusto Payroll Report
	1.22.2025 Off Cycle Payroll Gusto Report - M. Wischmeyer MIPD

	Section VII, Itemb.	February 5, 2025 Payables
	Payables Spreadsheet 2.5.2025

	Section VIII, Itema.	January 15, 2025 Public Safety Committee Report
	1.15.2025 Public Safety Committee Report

	Section VIII, Itemb.	January 29, 2025 Public Safety Committee Report
	1.29.2025 Public Safety Committee Report

	Section X, Itema.	Mackinac Island Police Department – hiring of a local K-9 Unit
	Canine (K9) Position Job Description - MIPD

	Section X, Itemb.	Discussion and / or action regarding the 2025 parking fees & schedules submitted by Arnold Transit
	Arnold Transit - schedules & parking rates
	Arnold Original Submission

	Section X, Itemc.	Discussion and / or action regarding the 2025 parking fees & schedules submitted by Shepler’s Ferry
	Shepler's 2025 - schedules and parking fees
	Shepler's Original Submission

	Section XI, Itemb.	Mackinac Marine Rescue 2024 Annual Report
	2024 MMR Annual Report

	Section XI, Itemc.	Request for approval to adopt the City of Mackinac Island Resolution for Poverty Exemption
	Mackinac Island Poverty Exemption Resolution 2025

	Section XI, Itemd.	Request for approval to adopt the City of Mackinac Island Assessor Contact Information & Policy Regarding Access to Assessment Records
	Mackinac Island Assessor and Record Access Policy-2025

	Section XI, Iteme.	Request for approval of the 2025 parking locations for the Wheelman event
	2025 wheelman

	Section XI, Itemf.	Request for approval of a Competitive Event Application, submitted by Aaron Palaian, for the OTILLO SwimRun
	Otillo Swimrun

	Section XI, Itemg.	Request for approval of (3) Competitive Event Applications, submitted by Run Mackinac Events
	Run Mackinac Applications (3)

	Section XI, Itemh.	Request for approval of a trailer permit, submitted by Dickinson Homes, for work at Hoban Hill
	Dickinson Trailer Permit

	Section XI, Itemi.	Request for approval of (1) vehicle & (3) trailer permits, submitted by J&R Building Movers & U.P. North Construction, to deliver modular sections to the Wenzel build – Forest Bluff Lot #3
	J&R - Wenzel

	Section XI, Itemj.	Request for approval of a vehicle permit, submitted by U.P. North Construction, for a telehandler for roof work at the Wenzel build – Forest Bluff Lot #3
	UPNorthConst. - Wenzel

	Section XI, Itemk.	Request for approval of (2) vehicles & (1) trailer, submitted by Plutchak Crane Rental, to set modular sections at the Wenzel build – Forest Bluff Lot #3
	Plutchak - Wenzel;

	Section XI, Iteml.	Request for approval of an Off-Island business license application, submitted by Steve Brinks
	Steve Brinks Off Island BL

	Section XI, Itemm.	Request for approval of (2) vehicle and (1) trailer permit, submitted by Steve Brinks, for factory house setting at the Wenzel build (Forest Bluff Lot #3) & at the new school housing
	Steve Brinks Permits

	Bottom



